City of Seattle Request for Proposal CTY 2771

City of Seattle

Recycling Collection Services for City Owned Properties
Addendum 


	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	1
	11/9/2010
	12/06/2010
	The City uses bags to hold comingled ‘kitchen” recycling items at the Justice Center and Library. These bags are then brought down and placed in containers for pick up. My question is -Is the City charged by their current recycler for these bags or does the City purchase these bags on their own?
	The City Hall and Justice Center use recycle bags that are purchased through our warehouse. The city has a contract for recycle bags that our warehouse supplies to multiple city depts. In some circumstances the maintenance may be contracted out and the contractor is responsible for providing bags in most cases.
	

	2
	11/9/2010
	12/06/2010
	Is the city charged for the comingled recycling program (kitchens) that they have in place at City buildings?


	Some City facilities pay commercial rates for comingled recycling collection service. Other City facilities use the City’s Free Recycling services for commercial garbage customers (up to 2 totes serviced). While some other City facilities use the City recycling contract and do not pay for service – but these situations may be in conjunction with other paper and cardboard volumes being collected separately as well. 

	

	3
	11/9/2010
	12/06/2010
	Is the city being charges for recycling service or rental fees at any city buildings?


	Yes, at some facilities the City is paying commercial recycling collection rates for service – outside of the current City contract for recycling collection being provided by SeaDruNar. 
	

	4
	11/9/2010
	12/06/2010
	Is the company that wins the contract obligated to service the festivals or can this be awarded to another company?
	Seattle Center we desires a vendor for recycling to provide service for Festivals.  This usually means that the vendor has to add collection containers ranging in size for 4 yd to 40 yd adding to what we already have in place and then provide daily service over each day of the event including holidays.  Using multiple vendors for recycling during the festivals adds confusion and leads us to deal with many additional collection containers. That said, the festival response capability is not something that is required to offer a proposal to the City and Seattle Center can contract for this separately.
	

	5
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Instead of 200 pounds per yard of recycling collected– would 60 pounds per yard of recycling collected be acceptable?


	The following table will be utilized for the Volume to Weight Conversions for Recycled Materials.
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	6
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	If we, as vendor, document that a container was not full- would that be sufficient to pro-rate amount of material collected based on documented volume?


	Yes. Please describe the method of documentation (Paper form, digital photo, etc.).

	

	7
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would a commodity value sharing program similar to the one the City of Seattle currently has in place with Allied Waste Services to process the City’s residential recycling be acceptable?


	The City is looking for a commodity value sharing which is described in the proposal offer form.
	

	8
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would an audit process modeled on the one currently employed by the City of Seattle for evaluating the quality and composition of residential recycling brought to Allied Waste Services be acceptable?


	The specific audits requested in the sample terms and conditions attachment #2 refers to City, State or other Public Agency with this authority to perform audits as defined in term #39 on page 9 of 16.
	

	9
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would reporting based on the above referenced audit be acceptable?


	Reporting approaches are determined by the response provided in the proposal offer form and the consent of the City as well as any other negotiations which provide a resultant contract.
	

	10
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would the City make available its employees at its respective locations for recycling and diversion training to the Vendor at frequencies the Vendor determines to be suitable to correct, increase, or maintain acceptable recycling and diversion practices – as the Vendor sees fit?
	Yes, for some sites. It may be difficult at SMT and other large facilities. Successful proposers would be working closely with the collection staff at large facilities.
	

	11
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would the City make available to the Vendor all information regarding their waste, compost and recycling collection and its respective locations at intervals the Vendor requests to support the Vendor in its efforts to the help the City achieve its waste diversion goals?


	Facilities are encouraged to assist the vendor in diverting waste dependant on the availability of personnel and capacity.
	

	12
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	If the composition of the material(s) the Vendor collects from the City’s respective locations changes would the City agree to make material changes to the agreement with the Vendor based on the composition changes?


	The City reserves the right to add materials or services to a contract that are offered by the vendor in the proposal response.
	

	13
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	If the Vendor is not able to service the City’s recycling for any reason attributed to the City or its employees or agents would the City agree that the Vendor executed its service and accept the resulting impact on the amount of material collected by the Vendor?


	The City ultimately needs recycled materials collected in the most robust manner feasible. If the City facility and the vendor cannot come to an agreement regarding the facility would have no option but to utilize a different vendor.
	

	14
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would the City agree that the manner in which recycling material is collected is at the sole discretion of the Vendor – so as to be consistent with safe and efficient service?


	The City desires advisement to maximize waste diversion but is under no obligation to do so under the sole discretion of the vendor.
	

	15
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would the City agree to pay for any compactor or bailer equipment or the like - the city requires the Vendor to operate, maintain, or provide to execute the service the Vendor has bid to the City?


	The City does not suggest that the vendor purchase any compactor or bailer equipment. Dumpsters and carts are a different kind of equipment and the City would expect the vendor to provide and maintain these as needed. Any equipment owned by the City would be maintained by the City at the City’s expense.
	

	16
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Would the City agree to make available to the Vendor- at times and locations at the Vendor’s discretion its recyclables to be consistent with the manner the Vendor wishes the material to be serviced? 


	That would have to be assessed at the time of request and would be dependent upon factors within the facility and the times and locations offered by the vendor.
	

	17
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	How should revenue sharing be addressed for commodities that have a negative value (compost, etc). 
	The compostables commodity would have a negative value, therefore there would not be a revenue sharing element, just a collection service element. If there are other commodities that have no value, then in section 2.a. of the Vendor Proposal Response Form the vendor would insert a “0” in the price per ton.
	

	18
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	The Recycling Market Base Unit Prices in Section 2.a of the Vendor Proposal appear to contemplate a fixed base unit price over the life of the Contract. Is this the City’s intent? This effectively means that the Contractor alone bears the market risk in the event commodity prices rise or fall over the term. 
	Vendors must use the three year average rate for each commodity (Jan ’08 to Dec ’10) for bidding purposes as well as for payment beginning Jan 2011. They then insert their percentage of the average rate – referred to as the fixed revenue share per ton.
The unit base price is not the fixed item in the pricing of the contract. The percentage which the City realizes is the fixed component.

	

	19
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	The introduction to Section 2.a of the Vendor Proposal states that a revenue share will only apply to Paper Products collected by the Contractor. But later in the section, the City appears to ask for revenue sharing percentages for other commodities such as glass, PET, aluminum cans, etc. Can you please clarify? 
	The paper discussion in the introduction is to give vendors an idea as to the general volume of what would likely be the most profitable recyclable material collected. It may be that other commodities do not have a positive value thereby giving a $0.00 portion for revenue sharing.
	

	20
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	How did you arrive at the weighted factors? 
	The weighted factors in the Vendor Proposal (2.b.) have been derived from a rough estimation to reflect the container sizes that are currently used at the City.
	

	21
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Please provide a full list of account addresses and services provided at each site, including frequency of collection. 


	Current facilities that are being serviced under the SeaDruNar contract are identified in the Vendor Proposal, item #1.


[image: image2.emf]Current Facilities.doc


	

	22
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	How many facilities currently have compost? Are they only using carts? 


	City Hall, Justice Center, Seattle Center buildings and Seattle Municipal Tower are currently composting. Other facilities are as well, although they are not identified at this time. The City doesn’t have an estimate for the type of containers at all facilities.
	

	23
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	The assumption regarding commodity rebates is 200 pounds per yard, this seems high, and how was this calculated? 


	See the response to question #5.
	

	24
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Can we submit pricing based upon city zones (central, north, south, etc) 


	A vendor may offer a proposal for those City facilities within a region or “zone” to realize efficiencies regarding established routes. The City will not separate facilities into geographic zones.
	

	25
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Can we have a copy of Seadrunar’s contract? 


	SeaDruNar’s contract may be found at the following website:

http://www2.cityofseattle.net/purchasing/vendorcontracts/BVCDetail.asp?rptid=250&SortMode=1&ReportOption=0&cid=B90446&sr1=2&sr2=2

	

	26
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Please provide an example of how the interlocal clause may come into effect. Does the City currently offer contract pricing for recycling collection to other government or non-profit entities through an interlocal agreement? 


	If the selected vendor (s) and another public agency consent to utilize the same contracting vehicle it is authorized under Chapter 39.34 RCW, Interlocal Cooperation Act. The City currently does not currently offer interlocal purchasing through the current SeaDruNar contract.
	

	27
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	The RFP contemplates the creation of a “vendor pool” with multiple Contractors authorized to perform recycling collection from City facilities. How will this work in practice? Does the City envision selecting an approved list of vendors, each with a maximum price it is able to charge for recycling collection, and then have these vendors compete for business with each individual City facility? Will all vendors in the pool be subject to the same maximum prices or will the maximum price be different for each vendor? 


	The City envisions a vendor pool that allows for a variety of materials to be collected. The pricing will be dependent upon the pricing submitted by those vendors that are successful.


	

	28
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Does a vendor pool approach make sense given the collection inefficiencies and environmental impacts of having multiple vendors with multiple vehicles potentially servicing the same facility or nearby facilities? Would the City instead consider dividing the City into sections and entering into an exclusive arrangement with one vendor in each section, similar to the City of Seattle’s contract for solid waste collection? 


	The primary intent of the City is to maximize the amount of materials diverted from a waste stream. If this requires the City facility to utilize more than one vendor contract to meet that goal due to particular recycling streams or services offered, the facility requires that level of flexibility. Due to the unique nature of the facilities and the variety of needs, we will not be separating the City into collection zones.
	

	29
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	The proposed Contract Terms and Conditions reference prevailing wage requirements, but it is not clear from the RFP materials whether the City will require the selected Contractors to pay prevailing wages. Prevailing wages are required under the City’s other contracts for solid waste collection and C&D collection, and we would recommend the City add a specific requirement here. 


	There is no State of Washington requirement to pay prevailing wage for this labor category.
	

	30
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	The rate adjustment provision in the RFP is pretty complicated and may be difficult to administer. As an alternative, would the City consider simplifying this by just having the container and collection fees escalate each year by the CPI? 


	The rate adjustment provision is driven by the CPI increase for container and collection fees, offset by market share.
	

	31
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Where is the collection of the material to take place? Does the janitorial staff deliver material to ground floor for service collection? 


	This will vary from site to site but the majority of the large sites were covered in the mandatory pre-proposal walk through.
	

	32
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Any restriction on time of day of service? 


	There will be certain sites that require a restriction of when recyclables can be picked up. This will be determined by the City facility manager and the vendor.
	

	33 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	What types of storage requirements are necessary and how many waste containers are required? 


	This will vary by facility.
	

	34 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Should the vendor determine that the work required to perform does not meet its expectation do they have right to terminate this contract during the ninety day trial period? 


	The City reserves the right to cancel for convenience, cause and other factors spelled out within the standards City of Seattle Terms and Conditions. The Right to Award to the Next Vendor within 90 days is at the discretion of the City. 
	

	35 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Should extraordinary conditions occur and require a price increase? 


	If those conditions can be verified and confirmed the City will take that into consideration for any price increases or decreases.
	

	36 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	If materials that will be recycled do not have value, how would you like that to be proposed?  Should we just put in unit prices per container size with all applicable rates?


	Yes. 
	

	37 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	It appears that this RFP will establish a pool of qualified vendors and that each individual site has the ability to choose their own service provider from that pool.  Can you confirm that this is the case?


	That is correct.
	

	38 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Are city facilities able to utilize the available city compost collection services?


	Yes.
	

	39 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	How many roll off and compactor accounts are there currently?  At which City facilities are they located and what is their commodity make up (all cardboard, paper only, commingled with plastic and glass, etc.)?  What is their service frequency and size?
	The Justice Center has a compactor with 2 / 2 cubic yard roll offs that are picked up twice a week. They both are commingled per SPU collection streams.

Seattle Center has 25 cubic yard roll-off containers for recycling of Clean Mixed Paper only which is picked up on-call about 3-4 times a month for each.

Seattle Municipal Tower has a 2 cubic yard dumpster picked up twice weekly 
	

	40 
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	How many employees are there at each site?


	The Seattle Municipal Tower holds approximately 5,000 people. We do not have estimates of the remaining buildings at this time although buildings open to the public (Seattle Library and Seattle Center as an example) will have much greater volume than their occupancy would indicate. For a sense as to the volumes anticipated please see item # 21.
	

	41
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	What is the current container count at each size at the 17 listed sites?  i.e. How many total 96g carts, 2yd dumpsters, etc. are there at the sites combined?
	See item # 21 for details of current facilities.
	

	42
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Are there any events or festivals at the Seattle Center which utilize the basic service levels there?  Or is each event dealt with separately?


	Seattle Center brings in additional collection containers (4yd and up) for some events like the Seattle Marathon and other large events.  These are usually serviced on a one time basis and then removed following the event.  These are situations where we add to our existing capacity to handle the events peak load. 


	

	43
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Item #3 on page 20 of the RFP asks us to provide an Equal Benefits Declaration and asks questions regards whether the declaration was included and what our intent is around Equal Benefits but I don’t find a declaration in the RFP. Please advise.
	Please disregard the Equal Benefits component of the Vendor Questionnaire. Equal Benefits is not required for this RFP.
	

	44
	11/12/2010
	12/06/2010
	Can the deadline for submittal be extended to provide additional time to respond?
	Yes. The new deadline for submittals is December 10th, 2010 at 4 PM Pacific.
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          Volume-to-Weight Conversions for Recyclable Materials
for use with the Municipal Recycling Data Sheet


Material Density Sources
Paper


Newspaper
Loose, unbaled 445 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3
Compacted 800 pounds / cubic yard 2,3
Hand stacked 35 pounds / 12 inch stack 2,3


Corrugated Cardboard
Loose, unbaled 200 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3
Compacted 460 pounds / cubic yard 2,3


Other Paper
Telephone Books 250 pounds / cubic yard 4
Mixed Paper 490 pounds / cubic yard 1,3


Containers
Commingled


Cans, Glass & Plastic 180 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3
Cans & Glass 270 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3


Glass
Whole Bottles 620 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3
Crushed-semi (manually) 1,175 pounds / cubic yard 2,3
Mechanically Crushed 1,840 pounds / cubic yard 2,3


Steel/ Tin Cans
Whole 150 pounds / cubic yard 2,3
Flattened 850 pounds / cubic yard 2,3


Aluminum Cans
Whole 60 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3
Flattened 225 pounds / cubic yard 2,3


Plastics
PET #1 - whole 35 pounds / cubic yard 1,2,3
HDPE #2 - whole 25 pounds / cubic yard 3
Plastics #3 - #7 - whole 50 pounds / cubic yard 3
All Plastics: #1 - #7 - whole 38 pounds / cubic yard 2


Miscellaneous materials
White goods (appliances) 300 lb / cy or 170 each on average 4
Textiles 175 pounds / cubic yard 4
CRTs/Computers 50 lbs each (whole on average) 4


Organics - Weight Conversions
Grass Clippings 667 pounds / cubic yard 4
Leaves 400 pounds / cubic yard 4
Brush 500 pounds / cubic yard 4
Unfinished compost 1,500 pounds / cubic yard 4
Finished compost 1,350 pounds / cubic yard 4


Organics - Volumetric Conversions
Grass Clippings 3 cubic yards/ton 4
Leaves 5 cubic yards/ton 4
Brush 4 cubic yards/ton 4


Hazardous Household Products (HHP)
Auto batteries  39 lbs each 5
Batteries (household) 40 pounds / 5 gallon pail 4
Oil filters 250 pounds / 55 gallon drum 4
Paint (boxed) 690 pounds / cy box 4
Paint (bulk packed) 450 pounds / 55 gallon drum 4


Mercury Containing Products (MCP)
Fluorescent lamps 0.5 pounds / four foot lamp 4
U-Tube report as 4 linear feet each
Circular Bulb report as 4 linear feet each
Compact Fluorescent Light Bulb report as 4 linear feet each
HID Bulbs report as 8 linear feet each


Sources
1. California Integrated Waste Management Board, data from CalRecovery report (w/Tellus) of 1991
2. National Recycling Coalition, data from 1998
3. Information from other government sources includes OR & VA Departments of Environmental Quality, NJ Department of Environmental Protection, HI documentation


as well as US Navy facility guidance documents and the United States Environmental Protection Agency
4. DEP conversion rate from previous research
5. From EPA and Waste Age
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		Name

		Location

		Frequency of Pick Up

		Containers at Location



		Computer Center

		220 3rd Avenue South

Seattle, WA 98104

		Thursday

		3 carts



		Dearborn Facility

		1010 8th Avenue South

Seattle, WA 98134

		EOW(every other week) Wednesday

		4 carts

Bale pick up on Fridays



		Fire Department #10

		301 2nd Avenue South,

Seattle, WA 98104

		wed

		barrel



		Seattle Public Library

		1000 4th Avenue

Seattle, WA 98164

		N/A

		N/A



		Seattle City Hall

		600 4th Avenue

Seattle, WA 98104

		M-T-W-TH-F

		5 CARTS



		Seattle Parks Department

		800 Maynard Avenue South

Seattle, WA 98134

		WED

		5 CARTS



		Seattle Police

		810 Virginia Street

Seattle, WA 98121

		TUE

		6 CARTS



		Seattle Police

		2203 Airport Way South

Seattle, WA 98134

		WED

		5 CARTS



		Seattle Public Utilities Operations Center

		2700 Airport Way South

Seattle, WA 98134

		THURSDAY

		4 CARTS

2 X 5 YD DUMPSTERS



		Seattle Police

		9200 8th Avenue South

Seattle, WA 98108

		MON

		1 BARREL



		Seattle Justice Center

		610 3rd Avenue

Seattle, WA 98104

		M-T-W-TH-F

		5 CARTS



		Seattle Traffic Control Center

		4200 Airport Way South

Seattle, WA 98108

		THURSDAY

		1 X 8 YD



		Seattle Municipal Tower

		700 5th Avenue

Seattle, WA 98104

		ON CALL

FRIDAY

		Compactor

Bales


6 carts that’s stay at site for SMT storage



		Seattle Center

		305 Harrison Street

Seattle, WA 98109

		On call

		30 yard roll off



		Seattle Public Utilities North Operations Center

		1318 North 128th Street

Seattle, WA 98133

		wed

		2 barrels



		Seattle City Light, North Service Center

		1300 North 97th Street

Seattle, WA 98103

		Monday

		7 carts



		Seattle City Light, South Service Center

		3613 4th Avenue South

Seattle, WA 98134

		Monday

		1 x 8 yard

6 carts






